Notice of Meeting

People, Performance and
Development Committee
Date & time
Thursday, 13 June
2019
at 2.00 pm

Place
Committee Room C,
County Hall, Kingston
upon Thames, Surrey
KT1 2DN

Contact
Vickie Neal
Room 122, County Hall

Chief Executive
Joanna Killian

Vickie.neal@surreycc.gov.uk

We’re on Twitter:
@SCCdemocracy

If you would like a copy of this agenda or the attached papers in
another format, eg large print or braille, or another language please
either call 020 8541 9068, write to Democratic Services, Room 122,
County Hall, Penrhyn Road, Kingston upon Thames, Surrey KT1
2DN, Minicom 020 8541 8914, fax 020 8541 9009, or email
democratic.services@surreycc.gov.uk.
This meeting will be held in public. If you would like to attend and you
have any special requirements, please contact Vickie Neal via email on
vickie.neal@surreycc.gov.uk

Members
Mr Tim Oliver (Chairman), Mr Colin Kemp (Deputy Chairman), Mr Ken Gulati, Mr Eber A Kington,
Mr Chris Botten and Ms Denise Turner-Stewart

Page 1 of 4

AGENDA
1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

2

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS

(Pages 1
- 12)

To agree the minutes of the People Performance and Development
Committee which took place on 25 April 2019, and 8 May 2019, and those
of the Appointments Sub-Committee meetings which took place on 10 May
and 14 May, as true records of those meetings.
3

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the meeting or
as soon as possible thereafter
(i)
(ii)

Any disclosable pecuniary interests and / or
Other interests arising under the Code of Conduct in respect of any
item(s) of business being considered at this meeting

NOTES:
•
•

•

4

Members are reminded that they must not participate in any item
where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest
As well as an interest of the Member, this includes any interest, of
which the Member is aware, that relates to the Member’s spouse or
civil partner (or any person with whom the Member is living as a
spouse or civil partner)
Members with a significant personal interest may participate in the
discussion and vote on that matter unless that interest could be
reasonably regarded as prejudicial.

QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS
To receive any questions or petitions.
Notes:
1. The deadline for Member’s questions is 12.00pm four working days
before the meeting (Friday 7 June).
2. The deadline for public questions is seven days before the meeting
(Thursday 6 June).
3. The deadline for petitions was 14 days before the meeting, and no
petitions have been received.

5

ACTION REVIEW

(Pages
13 - 18)

For Members to consider and comment on the Committee’s actions
tracker.
6

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
For Members to review and comment on upcoming items due for
consideration by the People, Performance and Development Committee.

Page 2 of 4

(Pages
19 - 22)

7

WORKFORCE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
For Members to receive a demonstration of Workforce Performance
Indicators using Tableau.

8

MEMBER/OFFICER PROTOCOL

(Pages
23 - 34)

For Members to consider and comment on the revised Member/Officer
Protocol.
9

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
Recommendation: That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government
Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items
of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of
exempt information under the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule
12A of the Act.

PART TWO – IN PRIVATE
10

STAFFING TERMS AND CONDITIONS ASSOCIATED WITH MOVING
CLOSER TO RESIDENTS

(Pages
35 - 44)

To provide an overview of the staffing implications of the Moving Closer to
our Residents (MCTR) Programme, together with a timeline for planned
activities.
Confidential: Not for publication under Paragraph 4
Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated
consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations
matter arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and
employees of, or office holders under the authority.
11

RESTRUCTURES UPDATE

(Pages
45 - 50)

To provide the Committee with an overview of, and rationale for,
organisational restructures both ongoing and planned.
Confidential: Not for publication under Paragraph 4
Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated
consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations
matter arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and
employees of, or office holders under the authority.
12

PUBLICITY OF PART 2 ITEMS
To consider whether the item considered under Part 2 of the agenda
should be made available to the press and public.
Confidential: Not for publication under Paragraph 4
Information relating to any individual.

Page 3 of 4

13

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
The next meeting of People, Performance and Development Committee
will be on 23 September 2019.

Joanna Killian
Chief Executive
Published: Wednesday, 5 June 2019
MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE
Those attending for the purpose of reporting on the meeting may use social media or mobile
devices in silent mode to send electronic messages about the progress of the public parts of
the meeting. To support this, County Hall has wifi available for visitors – please ask at
reception for details.
Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at council meetings. Please liaise with
the council officer listed in the agenda prior to the start of the meeting so that those attending
the meeting can be made aware of any filming taking place.
Use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is subject to
no interruptions, distractions or interference being caused to the PA or Induction Loop systems,
or any general disturbance to proceedings. The Chairman may ask for mobile devices to be
switched off in these circumstances.
It is requested that if you are not using your mobile device for any of the activities outlined
above, it be switched off or placed in silent mode during the meeting to prevent interruptions
and interference with PA and Induction Loop systems.
Thank you for your co-operation

Page 4 of 4

Item 2
MINUTES of the meeting of the PEOPLE, PERFORMANCE AND
DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE held at 2.00 pm on 25 April 2019 at
Committee Room C, County Hall, Kingston upon Thames, Surrey KT1 2DN.
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Committee at its meeting.
Elected Members:
Mr Tim Oliver (Chairman)
Mr Colin Kemp (Deputy Chairman)
Mr Ken Gulati
Mr Eber A Kington
Ms Denise Turner-Stewart
Apologies:
Mrs Fiona White
In Attendance
Jackie Foglietta, Director or HR and OD
Anasia Teete, Lead Consultant - Policy
Ayaz Malik, Pensions Accountant Advisor
Vicky Hibbert, Senior Manager – Governance
Vickie Neal, Democratic Services Assistant
12/19 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS [Item 1]
Apologies were received from Fiona White.
13/19 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS [Item 2]
Minutes from the previous meeting were agreed as a true record.
14/19 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST [Item 3]
There were none.
15/19 PROCEDURAL MATTERS [Item 4]
There were none.
16/19 ACTION REVIEW [Item 5]
Declarations of interest:
None
Witnesses:
Jackie Foglietta, Director of HR and OD
Vicky Hibbert, Senior Manager - Governance
Key points from the discussion:
Page 1 of 5

Page 1

2

2
1. Members queried why the Member/Officer Protocol would not be
presented to County Council until later in the year. Officers said that
this would be deferred until after the AGM and would be presented to
the Committee at the meeting on 13 June 2019 before going to County
Council for approval in July.
2. Members asked for clarification over whether the Member/Officer
Protocol was binding in terms of attendance at meetings and training.
Officers clarified that it would refer to behaviour and conduct, with
reference to the council’s Member and Employee Codes of Conduct.
Actions/ further information to be provided:
None
RESOLVED:
That the Committee continue to monitor progress on the implementation of
actions from previous meetings.
17/19 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME [Item 6]
Declarations of interest:
None
Witnesses:
Jackie Foglietta, Director of HR and OD
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. Officers explained that until a decision has been made on where the
new Civil Heart will be located they will not be in a position to negotiate
changes to staffing terms and conditions with Trade Unions.
2. Members of the Committee asked if HR had timescales for the
completion of restructures across the council.
Actions/ further information to be provided:
1. That the Member-Officer Protocol be added to the Forward Work
Programme for June.
2. That the Director of HR & OD provide an update on the staffing related
implications of the Moving to Closer To Residents Programme at the
meeting of the People, Performance and Development Committee on
13 June 2019.
3. That the Director of HR & OD report on the restructures taking place
across the council at the meeting of the People, Performance and
Development Committee on 13 June 2019.
RESOLVED:

Page 2 of 5

Page 2

That the People, Performance and Development Committee reviewed and
noted the items that it was due to consider.
18/19 ACCELERATING APPRENTICESHIPS [Item 7]
Declarations of interest:
None
Witnesses:
Jackie Foglietta, Director of HR and OD
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. Officers opened the floor for questions regarding the Accelerating
Apprenticeships plan and the apprenticeship levy. It was noted that
under new government guidance, up to 25% of an organisation’s levy
could be transferred to other organisations. The council had recently
agreed a transfer of levy funding to SECAmb for the purposes of
paramedic apprenticeships across Surrey.
2. Officers and Members discussed possible reasons for the
comparatively low numbers of ‘traditional’ apprentices at the council.
3. Ways to use apprenticeship levy funding for skills shortage areas/ vital
services were discussed and further work will be undertaken with
university providers over the next year in preparation for qualified
social work apprenticeships within the council’s Adult Social Care and
Children’s Services – to start September 2020.
Actions/ further information to be provided:
1. That the Director of HR and OD continue activities to utilise
apprenticeship levy and attract more apprentices to the council as
outlined in the plan.
RESOLVED:
That the Committee received an update on the apprenticeship strategy.
19/19 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT [Item 8]
Declarations of interest:
None
Witnesses:
Jackie Foglietta, Director of HR and OD
Anasia Teete, Lead Consultant - Policy
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. Officers provided background information to changes to the council’s
appraisals process and the introduction of Performance Conversations
for staff. Members were informed that further work is being undertaken
Page 3 of 5

Page 3

2

2

with the Corporate Leadership Team to create corporate themes to
feed into Performance Conversations going forward.
2. There was concern from members about the feasibility of Performance
Conversations happening for all staff every month and how these
would be recorded and monitored. It was noted that a survey would be
conducted with all staff in the autumn to gain insight into the frequency
and quality of Performance Conversations. Members requested that
they have the opportunity to review the results of the survey.
3. Members asked if Performance Conversations would replace staff
bonus mechanisms and so remove the incentive for exceptional work
and it was confirmed that a new approach would be used to allow a
real time reward to be paid in recognition of exceptional work. The
Committee requested that the criteria for this reward be brought to a
future committee meeting for review.
4. Members queried whether data was collected on how many
grievances, capability and disciplinary cases occurred each year and it
was confirmed that this information was tracked and monitored by HR.
It was requested that these statistics be reviewed annually be the
committee.
Actions/ further information to be provided:
1. HR to use annual follow-up surveys to assess the quality of
Performance Conversations and the Committee to monitor the results
of these.
2. The Committee to receive and review statistics on how many
performance management related cases take place on an annual
basis.
RESOLVED:
The People, Performance and Development Committee agreed to the
proposed amendments to the following policies and procedures
a) Performance Capability
b) Disciplinary
c) Grievance
20/19 APPOINTMENT OF AN EMPLOYER REPRESENTATIVE OF THE LOCAL
PENSION BOARD [Item 9]
Declarations of interest:
None
Witnesses:
Jackie Foglietta, Director of HR and OD
Ayaz Malik, Pensions Accountant Advisor
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. Members were provided with an overview of the appointment process
and considered the recommendations from the
Page 4 of 5

Page 4

Appointment/Termination Panel for the proposed appointment of an
individual to the Local Pension Board.
Actions/ further information to be provided:
None
RESOLVED:
The PPDC confirmed the appointment of Katy Meakin as an Employer
representative to the Local Pension Board.
21/19 DATE OF NEXT MEETING [Item 10]
The Committee noted that its next meeting would be held on 13 June 2019.

Meeting ended at: 2:45pm
______________________________________________________________
Chairman

Page 5 of 5

Page 5

2

2

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6

MINUTES of the meeting of the PEOPLE, PERFORMANCE AND
DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE held at 10.30 am on 8 May 2019 at G44,
County Hall, Kingston upon Thames, KT1 2DN.
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Committee at its meeting.
Elected Members:
Mr Tim Oliver (Chairman)
Mr Colin Kemp (Deputy Chairman)
Mr Ken Gulati
Mr Eber A Kington
Mrs Fiona White
In Attendance
Joanna Killian – Chief Executive
Jackie Foglietta – Director of HR & OD
Vickie Neal – Democratic Services Assistant
22/19 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS [Item 1]
No apologies were received.
23/19 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST [Item 2]
There were none.
24/19 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC [Item 3]
RESOLVED: That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information under
the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.
25/19 SENIOR APPOINTMENT OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FOR RESOURCES
[Item 4]
Declarations of interest:
None
Witnesses:
Joanna Killian – Chief Executive
Jackie Foglietta – Director of HR & OD
Vickie Neal – Democratic Services Assistant
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The People, Performance and Development Committee conducted
final interviews for the role of Executive Director for Resources
(Section 151 Officer) at Surrey County Council. During the interview,
Page 1 of 2

Page 7

2

2

the candidate responded to a number of set questions asked by the
Committee.
2. Following an in depth discussion on the performance of the candidate,
the Committee selected Leigh Whitehouse as the person it is
recommending that the County Council appoints to the role of
Executive Director for Resources (Section 151 Officer).
Actions/ further information to be provided:
1. A full report will be presented to Council on 21 May 2019 for
appointment of Executive Director for Resources (Section 151 Officer).
RESOLVED:
The People, Performance and Development Committee agreed to
recommend Leigh Whitehouse to Full Council on 21 May 2019 as a suitable
appointment to the role of Executive Director of Resources (Section 151
Officer).
26/19 PUBLICITY OF PART 2 ITEMS [Item 5]
It was agreed that the information in relation to the Part 2 items discussed at
the meeting would remain exempt.

Meeting ended at: 11:23am
______________________________________________________________
Chairman

Page 2 of 2

Page 8

MINUTES of the meeting of the APPOINTMENTS SUB-COMMITTEE held at
10.00 am on 10 May 2019 at Members Conference Room, County Hall,
Kingston upon Thames, Surrey KT1 2DN.
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Committee at its meeting on
Thursday, 13 June 2019
Elected Members:
*
*
*
*

Mr Tim Oliver (Chairman)
Ms Denise Turner-Stewart
Mr Eber A Kington
Mrs Fiona White

In attendance

1/19

Jason Russell – Executive Director for Highways, Transport and Environment
Chloe Stokes – Manager, Operations
Vickie Neal – Democratic Services Assistant
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS [Item 1]
There were none.

2/19

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST [Item 2]
There were none.

3/19

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC [Item 3]
RESOLVED: That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information under
the relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

4/19

SENIOR APPOINTMENT OF A DIRECTOR FOR COMMUNITY
PROTECTION AND EMERGENCIES [Item 4]
Declarations of interest:
None
Witnesses:
Jason Russell – Executive Director for Highways, Transport and Environment
Chloe Stokes – Manager, Operations
Vickie Neal – Democratic Services Assistant
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The Appointments Sub-Committee conducted final interviews for the
role of Director for Community Protection and Emergencies (Chief Fire
Officer) at Surrey County Council. During the interview, the candidate
responded to a number of set questions asked by the Committee.
2. Following an in depth discussion on the performance of the candidate,
the Committee agreed that Steve Owen-Hughes clearly demonstrated
Page 1 of 2

Page 9

2

2

the skills and experience necessary to be Director for Community
Protection and Emergencies (Chief Fire Officer) at Surrey County
Council.
Actions/ further information to be provided:
None
RESOLVED:
The Appointments Sub-Committee agreed to appoint Steve Owen-Hughes to
the position of Director for Community Protection and Emergencies (Chief Fire
Officer)
5/19

PUBLICITY FOR PART TWO ITEMS [Item 5]
It was agreed that the information in relation to Part 2 items discussed at the
meeting would remain exempt.

Meeting ended at: 11:20am
______________________________________________________________
Chairman

Page 2 of 2

Page 10

MINUTES of the meeting of the APPOINTMENTS SUB-COMMITTEE held at
3.00 pm on 14 May 2019 at County Hall, Kingston upon Thames, Surrey KT1
2DN.
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Committee at its meeting on
Date Not Specified.
Elected Members:
*
*
*
*

Mr Tim Oliver (Chairman)
Mr Mel Few
Mr Eber A Kington
Mrs Fiona White

In attendance
Leigh Whitehouse – Executive Director of Finance
Jo Donoghue – Strategic Business Partner
Vickie Neal – Democratic Services Assistant
1/19

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS [Item 1]
There were none.

2/19

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST [Item 2]
There were none.

3/19

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC [Item 3]
RESOLVED: That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information under
paragraph 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

4/19

SENIOR APPOINTMENT OF A DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE FINANCE
AND A DIRECTOR OF FINANCIAL INSIGHTS [Item 4]
Declarations of Interest:
None.
Witnesses
Leigh Whitehouse – Executive Director of Finance
Jo Donoghue – Strategic Business Partner
Vickie Neal – Democratic Services Assistant
Key points raised during the discussion:
1. The Appointments Sub-Committee conducted final interviews for the
roles of Director of Financial Insights and Director of Corporate
Finance at Surrey County Council. During the interviews, the

Page 1 of 2

Page 11

2

2

candidates responded to a number of set questions asked by the
Committee.
2. Following an in depth discussion on the performance of the candidates
the Committee agreed that Rachel Wigley displayed the skills and
experience necessary to be Director of Financial Insights, and that
Anna D’Alessandro displayed the skills and experience necessary to
be Director of Corporate Finance at Surrey County Council.
Actions/further information to be provided:
None.
RESOLVED:
The Appointments Sub-Committee agreed to appoint Rachel Wigley to the
position of Director of Financial Insights.
The Appointments Sub-Committee agreed to appoint Anna D’Alessandro to
the position of Director of Corporate Finance.
5/19

PUBLICITY FOR PART TWO ITEMS [Item 5]
It was agreed that the information in relation to Part 2 items discussed at the
meeting would remain exempt.

Meeting ended at: 16:33pm
______________________________________________________________
Chairman

Page 2 of 2

Page 12

[RESTRICTED]
Item
5

5

People, Performance and Development Committee
13 June 2019

Action Review
Purpose of the report:
For Members to consider and comment on the Committee’s actions tracker.

Introduction:
An actions tracker recording actions and recommendations from previous meetings is
attached as Annex 1 and the Committee is asked to review progress on the items
listed.
Recommendations:
The Committee is asked to monitor progress on the implementation of actions from
previous meetings.
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Report contact: Vickie Neal, Democratic Services Assistant
Contact details: vickie.neal@surreycc.gov.uk
Annexes:
Annex 1 – People, Performance and Development Committee Actions Tracker

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Annex 1

People, Performance & Development Committee – ACTION TRACKING
ONGOING ACTIONS
Number
Meeting
Date
A7/19
25 April
2019

A7/19

25 April
2019

Page 15

Item

Action

Forward Work
Programme

That the Director of HR provide an
update on staffing terms and
conditions associated with moving
closer to residents at the meeting
of the People Performance and
Development Committee on 13
June 2019
That the Director of HR report on
the restructures taking place
across the council at the meeting of
the People, Performance and
Development Committee on 13
June 2019.
That the Director of HR research
and present ways to spend the
apprenticeship levy to attract more
apprentices to the council.

Forward Work
Programme

A8/19

25 April
2019

Accelerating
Apprenticeships

A9/19

25 April
2019

Performance
Management

A10/19

25 April
2019

Performance
Management

That HR use annual follow-up
surveys to continually asses the
quality of Performance
Conversations and the Committee
monitor the results from these.
That the Committee receive and
review statistics on how many
performance management cases
take place on an annual basis.

Action by
whom
Director of HR

June 2019
Action update

Report to be considered at the meeting of the
People, Performance and Development
Committee on 13 June 2019
(Updated: 5 June 2019)

Director of HR

Report to be considered at the meeting of the
People, Performance and Development
Committee on 13 June 2019
(Updated: 5 June 2019)

Director of HR

Director of HR /
Members of the
People,
Performance
and
Development
Committee
Director of HR /
Members of the
People,
Performance
and
Development
Committee

Item on Apprenticeship Pay Police added to
Forward Work Programme for consideration at
the meeting of the Committee on 23 September
(Updated: 5 June 2019)
Feedback and findings from Performance
Conversations added to the Forward Work
Programme to be monitored by the Committee
at its meeting on 23 September
(Updated: 5 June 2019)
Statistics to be incorporated into Workforce
Performance Indicators Report
(Updated: 20 May 2019)

5

5
Annex 1

People, Performance & Development Committee – ACTION TRACKING

COMPLETED ACTIONS
Number
Meeting
Date
A1/19

Page 16

A2/19

A3/19

11
February
2019

11
February
2019

11
February
2019

June 2019

Item

Recommendation / Action

Action by whom

Action update

Action review

The Director of HR to
provide Members of the
People, Performance and
Development Committee
with up to date Tier 3
structure charts alongside a
list of outstanding
appointments and
information on when future
appointments are likely to be
made.
The Director of HR to write
to Members of the People,
Performance and
Development Committee
following an Appointments
Sub-Committee to confirm
who has been appointed to
each role considered.
That the Forward Work
Programme contains the
correct job titles.

Director of HR

The Tier 3 structure charts and a list of future
appointments were circulated to Members of
the Committee on 18 March 2019.

Action review

Forward Work
Programme

(Updated: 29 April 2019)

Director of HR
To be actioned following each Appointments
Sub-Committee.
(Updated: 3 April 2019)

Senior Manager Governance

The Forward Work Programme has been
updated to ensure that the correct job titles are
included.
(Updated: 3 April 2019)

Annex 1

People, Performance & Development Committee – ACTION TRACKING
A4/19

A5/19

Page 17

A12/18

A6/19

11
February
2019

11
February
2019

14 June
2018

25 April
2019

Surrey Pay
2019/20

Pay Policy
Statement

Member/Officer
Working
Relationships

Forward Work
Programme

The Director of HR to
provide further information
on the full time equivalents
employed by the Council to
Members of the People,
Performance and
Development Committee.
The Director of HR to make
reference to the median pay
ratio being lower than the
government limit of 10:1
within the final Pay Policy
Statement report to County
Council.
The Member Development
Steering Group to be asked
to conduct a review into the
standards expected of
Members in respect of their
attendance at meetings, the
outcomes of which should be
reported back to the
Committee.
That the Member/Officer
Protocol be added to the
Forward Work Programme
for June

Director of HR

June 2019

A spreadsheet containing FTE information was
circulated to Members of the Committee on 15
April 2019.
(Updated: 15 April 2019)

Director of HR

The Pay Policy Statement was updated to
include this information and this was approved
by County Council on 19 March 2019
(Updated: 3 April 2019)

Democratic Services
Lead Manager

Democratic Services /
Director of HR

The Member Development Steering Group met
on to consider the revised protocol on 26
February 2019. It was agreed that the revised
protocol will be presented to PPDC at its
meeting on 13 June in advance of being
considered by County Council in July (see
A6/19 below).
(Updated: 29 April 2019)
The Member/Officer Protocol was added to the
Forward Work Programme for June and is due
to be considered at the PPDC meeting on 13
June 2019.
(Updated: 5 June 2019)

5

This page is intentionally left blank

[RESTRICTED]
Item
6

6

People, Performance and Development Committee
13 June 2019
Forward Work Programme
Purpose of the report:
For Members to review and comment on upcoming items due for consideration by
the People, Performance and Development Committee.

Introduction:
A Forward Plan recording agenda items for consideration at future People,
Performance and Development Committee meetings is attached as Annex 1, and
Members are asked to review the items listed on the Forward Plan.
Recommendations:
That the People, Performance and Development Committee review items that it is
due to consider at future meetings (Annex 1).
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Report contact: Vickie Neal, Democratic Services Assistant
Contact details: vickie.neal@surreycc.gov.uk
Annexes:
Annex 1 – People, Performance and Development Committee Forward Work
Programme

Page 19

This page is intentionally left blank

Annex 1

6
People Performance and Development Committee Forward Work
Programme – June 2019

23 September 2019

Item title Apprenticeship Pay Policy
Report
Jackie Foglietta, Director of HR & OD
author
Item
To seek Committee approval to proposals relating to apprentice pay.
Summary
Item title
Report
author
Item
Summary

Pensions Discretions Policy and Severance Policy
Jackie Foglietta, Director of HR & OD

Item title
Report
author
Item
Summary

Centrally Employed Teachers’ Pay and Tutors’ Pay
Jackie Foglietta, Director of HR & OD

Item title
Report
author
Item
Summary

Moving Closer to Residents – Staffing Implications
Jackie Foglietta, Director of HR & OD

To seek Committee approval to the Discretions Policy that the County Council
is required to formulate under the LGPS Regulations.

To seek Committee approval to proposals for Centrally Employed Teachers
and Tutors Pay for the year 2019/2020

To provide the Committee with an update on the staffing implications of the
MCTR Programme.

6 November 2019

Item title
Report
author
Item
Summary

Performance Conversations Feedback Survey
Jackie Foglietta, Director of HR & OD
For PPDC to review findings from Performance Conversations Feedback
Survey

Senior Officer Appointments will be scheduled as and when required.

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

[RESTRICTED]
Item
8

8
People, Performance and Development Committee
13 June 2019
REVISED MEMBER / OFFICER PROTOCOL

Purpose of the report:
For Members to consider and comment on the revised
Member/Officer Protocol.
This report is being brought to People, Performance and
Development Committee because the Committee requested that
the Member Development Steering Group lead a review of the
Member/Officer Protocol, ensuring that it is fit for purpose and
actively communicated.
Recommendations:
1. It is recommended that:


The Committee endorses the revised Member/Officer
Protocol and recommends this to County Council for
approval in July.

Introduction:
2. Surrey County Council is committed to enabling Members and
Officers to work effectively together to enable the delivery of
positive outcomes for the benefit of residents.
3. The Member/Officer Protocol forms part of the Constitution and
a decision is required from Council to approve the revision.
Background
4.

Informing the review. To understand the level of
understanding of the current Protocol and the existing
perceptions and challenges around Member/Officer
relationships, engagement was undertaken with both
Members and Officers, in the form of one to one interviews
and a focus group. This was supplemented by a Protocol
benchmarking exercise, comparing the council’s existing
Protocol with those from twenty other authorities.

5.

Summary of findings specific to the current Protocol:

Page 1 of 3

Page 23

[RESTRICTED]

a. It does not appear to have any real influence on ways of
working
b. It contains too much information that may not be relevant to
Member/Officer relationships
c. It includes too much information that is already contained
within other documents
d. There is repetition throughout the document, with similar
points being made
e. The document is too long which can result in it not being
read/fully understood
f. Language used could contribute to a culture of opposition
rather than encouraging collaboration and mutual respect
g. Language is at times ambiguous and lacks specific
examples to aid understanding
h. Some elements assume prior experience in order to put
them into context
i. The cultural shift the council is aiming to achieve is not
sufficiently reflected.

8

Key Changes in the new draft Protocol
6.

Contents. Content that is duplicated, or more appropriately
contained within other policy and guidance documents, has
been removed. The repetition of similar points have been
consolidated and reduced. This has reduced the length of the
document.

7.

Our People 2021. Aligning the Protocol to the county
council’s Vision and Values, as well as the Working Principles
developed through our cultural diagnostic work, has been
crucial to ensuring it fully reflects the cultural shift we are
aiming to achieve across the organisation. As a result, the
principles of and language used within the Protocol seek to
better reflect this.

8.

Clearer examples. The revisions seek to tackle previous
comments around the guidance and language being
ambiguous or complex, by including more specific examples
and descriptors. This should particularly help those Members
and Officers new to working together to understand the
relationship, expectations, boundaries and desired behaviours
from the outset.

Implementation
9.

Implementing the revised Protocol will be supported by an
expanded training offer for both Members and Officers,
starting from September 2019. The training will be structured
so that it covers mandatory induction programmes as well as
continuous development in a variety of forms (eLearning,
workshop/classroom activities, seminars and other face-toface events).

Page 2 of 3

Page 24

[RESTRICTED]

10. Implementation will also be supported by an internal
communications and engagement campaign.
Conclusions:
Financial and value for money implications
11. Implementation and training costs will be borne through
existing resources.
Next steps:
12. County Council decision to approve revised Protocol on 9 July
2019,
Report contact: Elliot Sinclair, Senior Manager – Leadership and
Member Support, Democratic Services
Contact details: elliot.sinclair@surreycc.gov.uk
Annexes:
Annex 1 –Member Officer Protocol

Page 3 of 3

Page 25

8

This page is intentionally left blank

Members and Officers of Surrey County Council
– A Protocol for Working Collaboratively
1.
Surrey County Council is committed to enabling Members and Officers to
work effectively together to enable the delivery of positive outcomes for the benefit of
residents.
2.
This Protocol provides guidance and principles that support effective working
relations between Members and Officers. It supplements, and does not seek to
repeat, other existing policies and protocols set out in the Constitution; specifically
the codes of conduct for Officers and Members.

Contents
The Role of Members and Officers................................................................................................1
Core principles ...................................................................................................................................1
The relationship – Piecing it together ..........................................................................................2
Familiarity and personal relationships.........................................................................................5
Access and the provision of Information ....................................................................................5
Communication and Correspondence .........................................................................................6
Confidentiality ....................................................................................................................................6
Release of information to the media.............................................................................................7
How to resolve issues ......................................................................................................................7

The Role of Members and Officers
3.
Members and Officers are both servants of the public; their roles are
complementary to each other but their responsibilities are distinct:
4.
Members are elected by residents and serve a term of office; they are
responsible and accountable for making strategic decisions and ensuring that they
are implemented by Officers.
5.
Officers are responsible to the Chief Executive via their managers and
Executive Directors; their role is to provide information, guidance, support and advice
to all Members so that they are equipped to make effective decisions. Officers are
responsible for implementing and delivering the outcomes of policy and decisions.

Core principles
6.


Members and Officers together will:
Be professional, respectful and reliable, working with mutual dignity, trust and
respect
Page 1 of 7

Page 27

8

8





7.




8.






Respond in a timely way to one another
Understand and advise on the needs of local communities
Trust and value each other’s expertise, knowledge and skills
Work together to build community capacity.
Members can expect Officers to:
Be honest, impartial and politically neutral
Keep them well-informed and give Members time to work with the information
provided
Implement policy and ensure operational delivery
Recognise the pressures that Members face whilst representing their
residents and the political environment that they operate in.
Officers can expect Members to:
Fully consider professional advice as part of decision making
Avoid becoming involved in routine management and staff issues (including
recruitment below Deputy Chief Officer level)
Carry out their role as the public face of the organisation and represent
residents’ best interests
Not criticise individual officers in the public domain
Show consideration by avoiding requests that include unreasonable deadlines
or excessive demands

The relationship – Piecing it together
The relationship is most effective when it operates in partnership. Both parties bring
skills, knowledge and experience but for the relationship to work there needs to be
awareness of expectations and boundaries.
We start from the precept that people are capable, mature and have good intent.

Officer support to Members - Keeping the local Member informed
9.
Surrey County Council’s 81 elected Members provide the bedrock of
representative democracy and it is important that they are supported to carry out
their community leadership role. Members are often the first point of contact for
residents and to be effective it is critical that they are updated about matters affecting
their division.
10.

Officers are expected to be equipped to keep local Members informed:





In relation to significant or sensitive operational matters
When there is planned or unexpected service disruption taking place
During the formative stages of policy development
Whenever a public consultation is planned
Page 2 of 7

Page 28



Prior to an issue raised in the media or public domain.

11.
Where an issue is to be discussed at a public meeting that affects a particular
division or area, all local county councillors will be invited and offered the opportunity
to speak.
12.

Officers can assist Members further by:




Being alert to the local political context of decisions or issues
Understanding their problems, looking for solutions and avoid focusing on
obstacles
Initiating contact proactively. Introductory emails to Members from newly
appointed Officers, where a relationship will need to exist, is welcomed.

The media test:
“Is it reasonably foreseeable that this topic could be reported in the local media?”
If the answer is “yes”, then communication with Members is required.
Officer support to Cabinet
13.
SCC operates a strong leader model of executive governance. The Cabinet
will take decisions in accordance with the Constitution and Officers will implement
those decisions.
14.
Whilst the distinction between Member/Officer roles and responsibilities is
consistent across the organisation, the relationship between the Cabinet and
Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) is unique. These groups have a leadership duty
to model the desired working relationships and boundaries; where members provide
strategic direction and CLT are responsible for the operational delivery.
15.
A close working relationship between Senior Officers and Cabinet Members is
inevitable (and desirable) but it should never become, or appear to become, so close
as to bring into question the Officer’s ability to work impartially with other Members
and political groups.
Officer support to Scrutiny
16.
Overview and Scrutiny plays an important role in overseeing policy
implementation, service performance and scrutinising Cabinet business and the
decisions that it takes. When Officers provide information for scrutiny committees,
they are expected to do so, in line with Access to Information requirements.
17.
Committees can request Officers attend scrutiny meetings. The intent is for
the Officer to provide relevant information on policies and service performance,
through constructive Member questions. Questions will not be related to the
capability or competence of Officers as this is not a scrutiny function.

Page 3 of 7

Page 29

8

8
Officer support to Political Groups
18.
Political groups are part of the informal governance landscape and they are
permitted to request that an Officer attends a group meeting for the purpose of
providing a briefing on a matter of policy, that is (or may be) the subject of a formal
meeting.


There is no entitlement to an additional meeting, or pre-briefing, ahead of
other Members being provided with information.

19.
To ensure transparency and political neutrality, the role of an Officer attending
a group meeting is to:





Inform the other political groups of the nature of the briefing
Provide the same factual information and professional advice to all political
groups on request
Withdraw from the meeting prior to groups discussing their course of action,
or if they feel their impartiality or integrity are being put at risk
Respect the confidentiality of any group discussion and not relay it to any
other Members/groups or third party. Officers are able to discuss the meeting
with senior Officers on a need to know basis.

20.
To ensure that information is appropriate for the audience and protects
confidentiality, groups need to provide advance notice of any third parties also
attending the meeting who are not bound by council policy.
21.
Whilst Members are entitled to use council premises and resources to carry
out their duties, Officers are not in a position to extend the use of the resources to
activities that are wholly personal, electioneering or solely for party political
purposes. Where an agreed arrangement exists, resources may be made available
at a charge.
Member support to Officers
22.
Members are able to contribute to fostering positive relationships by
recognising the boundaries and restrictions placed upon Officers. For example,
Officers are unable to:





Contribute to business solely relating to a political party (including attending
local political group meetings)
Take part in electioneering
Assist with personal correspondence or matters
Provide administrative support to Members in their capacity as a Councillor of
another local authority.

23.
Members have an important role in contributing to the development of policies
and strategies (including scrutinising decisions). However, this is distinctly different
from developing operational plans and the management of service delivery, which is
Page 4 of 7

Page 30

the domain of Officers. Members can foster positive relationships by remaining
mindful of this role boundary.
24.
When seeking to deal with constituent matters, on some occasions it may not
be possible to satisfy a Member’s request due to operational time, capacity and
resource pressures. Having a conversation about mutually appropriate timescales is
reasonable.
25.

Members can assist Officers further by:



Avoiding support requests based on personal preferences that create
additional pressure, process or cost
Introducing themselves early into their term to appropriate Officers and also
investing in the relationship.

Familiarity and personal relationships
26.
Social interaction between Officers and Members is only beneficial in a public
setting and work related context where professionalism is still maintained; this
extends to social media.
27.
Where a close/intimate personal relationship (relative/partner) exists or
develops between an Officer and Member, the Monitoring Officer is to be informed at
the earliest opportunity. Under these circumstances the Officer in question should
not perform or supply support that has a financial association or where there is a
conflict of interests.

Access and the provision of Information
28.
The statutory rights of Members’ access to information held by the Council are
outlined in Article 15 of the Constitution.
29.
Members need to have adequate and relevant advice and information
available to them in order to carry out their duties as Members of the Council,
Cabinet or any relevant Committees or Boards and in particular in their role as local
Members in relation to matters affecting their division. This enables Members to
make properly informed decisions, be effective community leaders and scrutinise
and develop policy. It is important that Officers assist Members by providing such
advice and information in a timely way when requested.
30.
If Members are not receiving, or are having difficulty in obtaining, information
where they are able to demonstrate a “need to know”, they should contact the
Monitoring Officer or appropriate Executive Director.
31.
If an Officer feels it to be necessary, they may contact their Executive
Director, or the Monitoring Officer, before providing confidential information to a
Member.

Page 5 of 7

Page 31

8

8

32.
When providing written or verbal reports and briefings, it is important that
Officers present information and advice in a way which is clear and evidence based.
Allowing Members the opportunity for constructive challenge and debate supports
effective decision making.

Communication and Correspondence
Open, honest and constructive communication is the foundation of our
collaborative culture that directly influences organisational outcomes.
Communication becomes easier as you build the relationship.
We start from the precept that we will be open and inviting, we will be clear about
what we mean and we will say clearly what we need from others and why.
33.
Regular contact between Officers and Members regarding council business is
encouraged.
34.
One to one communication between Members and Officers is confidential;
whether oral or written. General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) already apply
but further guidance includes that:



35.

Officers will seek agreement from parties before forwarding emails to other
Members
Blind copies (Bcc) to any recipient are not permitted.
Responses to individual Member enquiries should not automatically be
forwarded to cabinet portfolio holders.
Members appreciate it when Officers:




36.

Provide information in an accessible and readable format
Send information in good time so that Members can read it and be prepared
Acknowledge Members’ communications quickly and provide a response
timeframe
Officers appreciate it when Members:




Allow sufficient time to respond to Member enquiries
Acknowledge that Officers are working within restrictions with regards to data
protection and confidentiality.

Confidentiality
37.
Information given to a Member can only be used for the purpose for which it
was requested, that is in connection with the proper performance of the Member’s
duties as a Surrey County Councillor.

Page 6 of 7

Page 32

38.
Similarly, information requested by a Member (or a political assistant on
behalf of a Member of a political group) is provided by Officers in confidence. It is not
for distribution with other Members without the consent of the Member making the
request or the political assistant acting on his/her behalf.
39.
Information and correspondence to Members legitimately pertaining to their
role, whether by electronic means or post, will not be delayed or interfered with by
Officers or Members.
40.
Confidential information provided to Members should not be divulged to
anyone. If a Member identifies the need to disclose the information, prior advice is
required (e.g. from the Monitoring Officer).
41.
When information is distributed, best practice is to avoid forwarding an email
chain as this may contain additional personal data that is not for disclosure.

Release of information to the media
42.
Media activity, including press releases and social media activity, will be
prepared by the Communications team in support of decisions by the Council, the
Cabinet, Cabinet Members or any committees/boards, and generally on approved
policies and initiatives. These are ultimately the responsibility of the Director of
Communications & Engagement in conjunction with the relevant Executive
Director(s). They should be cleared with the appropriate Cabinet Member or
chairman before being issued and they may include a statement from the Cabinet
Member or chairman. Care should be taken to ensure that media activity support the
actions and decision of the council, not of a political party.
43.
There is specific legislative guidance relating to media activity in the run up to
an election. This is known as the Pre-Election Period (PERP, or popularly Purdah).
Great care has to be taken to ensure that council actions and statements cannot be
seen to support a particular political party.

How to resolve issues
44.
Members and Officers are considered as professionals and the expectation is
for individual differences to be resolved through private discussions at the earliest
and most suitable opportunity.
45.
There may be occasions when Members or Officers feel that the other’s
behaviour, or actions, have not been in the spirit of this Protocol. The Member or
Officer is advised to raise the issue with the respective line manager, Director,
Executive Director or Chief Executive, as appropriate. If an informal resolution
remains unsuccessful then the issue may be referred to the Monitoring Officer for
formal progression.
46.
Issues regarding professional standards and conduct are covered within the
relevant Codes of Conduct.
Page 7 of 7

Page 33

8

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 10

By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

10

Document is Restricted

Page 35

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

10

Document is Restricted

Page 41

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

11

Document is Restricted

Page 45

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

11

Document is Restricted

Page 49

This page is intentionally left blank

